Editorial 

HORROR TOURISM 
Co-convener of the International Peoples’ Tribunal on Human Rights and Justice in Kashmir, Angana Chatterji after exhaustive meetings with the JKCCS was suggested to take a day off to visit Pahalgam, a famous tourist resort of valley. She refused by stating that, it would be criminal on her part to go for sightseeing in this valley of pain and sufferings, where every family has a terrible story to tell. She added that her father, a renowned socialist revolutionary, who had worked with people like Jai Parakash Narayanan and other nationalist leaders during freedom struggle, had advised her if ever she happens to visit Kashmir then she should help the people in attaining their political rights. Angana visited Kashmir nine times since last 4 years after she got engaged with civil society. She visited the sites of massacres, mass graves and victims’ families, but she never ever visited Mughal Gardens, which are at a throw distance of 8 km from her hotel where she often stays. She feels content being a horror tourist. She stated in lighter vein that there should be horror tourism in Kashmir and outsiders could be taken to see and observe the horrors of militarization. 

A close friend of the Editor, who is well-settled in Pune, visits every year to his native place Kashmir with his family and spends time at tourist resorts of the valley. His major concern relating to conflict is that the BSF personnel who had hired his hotel at Boulevard for some years have vandalized it. They have plundered the furniture of the hotel, damaged its electric appliances and more shockingly to his family, have damaged the old tape recorder owned by his grandfather. He expresses casual concern towards the Kashmir conflict and always wishes return of “old peaceful days”. 

Tourism, a vital industry of the state remains in doldrums since the conflict erupted in 1989. Before that Kashmir was a major destination for Indian tourists including the Bollywood. In 60s almost every third Bollywood movie was shot in Kashmir. From last couple of years the govt. is trying to resurrect the tourism industry mainly for political reasons relating it with return of peace, with which govt. is obsessed. New generation in India have come up, who are eager to visit Kashmir to see the beauty of vale and also to escape from scorching heat.  From last couple of years, large number of tourists eager to visit Kashmir finally ended up in cancellation of their visits after the uprising.  Indian tourists visiting Kashmir are insensitive and least concern about the plight of besieged Kashmiri people. It would be a moral question as Kashmir is not the land only but the people. It is also not expected from the average Indian tourists to disturb their pleasure, as happiness is something that still awaits, as India ranks at bottom on the Global Prosperity Index. We are also aware about the value of human life in India. In Bombay (now Mumbai) alone every year nearly 4000 commuters die while traveling overcrowded trains, it doesn’t make any flutter. Here we are concerned about the attitude of the celebrities and prominent Indians, their statements and behavior tantamounts to rubbing salt on the wounds of Kashmiris. Few years back Sushmita Sen, a Cine Star and former Miss Universe during her visit to Kashmir stated in a golf course to media that Kashmir is really a heaven, “We wish she could have visited the mass grave sites or talk to victim families”. So is the case with others who are only wishing for return of “good old days”, which is disgusting. 

One cannot expect from them to speak the truth or to know the truth over the living conditions of native peoples or to speak about mass graves, dead bodies beneath the pristine water of Dal Lake or about the militarization, which is effecting the lives of Kashmiris from cradle to grave. They justify the saying of a famous socialist late Khawja Ahmad Abbas that: “Indian tourists while visiting Kashmir behave like Indian soldiers”. 

Despite adverse travel advisories, the foreign tourists visiting Kashmir have at least expressed their shock against the unprecedented militarization. At different occasions after returning to their respective places they wrote articles, informative write ups, about Kashmir situation and the plight of its people. That is why; the ordinary Kashmiri feel comfortable with foreign tourists. The Kashmiri people are encouraging western tourists so that more and more visit Kashmir to see and disseminate the truth. They understand that the tourism is not only the topography of the place but a living organism. Not the flora and fauna only but political and social life of the people. It is inhuman to ignore the living conditions of the people. Human rights defenders were frequent travels at the beginning of the armed conflict at least they prepared reports and organized seminars at New Delhi about the state excesses. Whether that made any difference or not but people here were appreciated their efforts and concerns. But now, it has altogether stopped, reasons best known to them. We have now the NGO tourists or track II tourism, busy in engaging Kashmir civil society for promoting their hidden or state patronaged agendas. They are working as extensions of state having huge financial resources from the foreign foundations. They conduct seminars on trivial issues in order to deflect and deflate the major issues. 

Angana saying about horror tourism, it is imperative that the visiting tourists should also visit the sites of massacres, mass graves and victim families. They should be also persuaded to see the memorials (if any) like other conflict zones where the visitors are acquainted with the struggle of the natives. It is more important for the Indian tourists to acquaint themselves with horrible truth of Kashmir and de-construct the Bollywood version; so that they can question their govt. CCS has seen how students from Indian who work as internees with the CCS change after their stay in Kashmir. They have now launched awareness campaigns in their respective places. 

TEENAGER BOOKED UNDER PSA IN DOWTOWN SRINAGAR

A teenager has been booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) and has been lodged at a far off place of the state in the District Jail Poonch. The boy has been identified as Nayeem Ahmad Dar s/o Bashir Ahmad r/o Baldaji, Mohalla, Rainawari downtown Srinagar. He has been alleged to indulge in anti-social activities and pelting stones on the CRPF troopers and police during demonstrations in the downtown Srinagar. 

Slapping PSA on a teenager enraged people of the downtown area particularly residents of Rainawari where Nayeem resides. People termed the booking of teenager under such a draconian act, callousness on the part of state administration. They while condemning the act staged protests and demanded release of the boy.

Shortly after the episode a reporter of The Informative Missive visited the residence of teenager, where his parents spoke to the reporter and narrated the whole tale about their son’s implication.

Bashir Ahmad, father of Nayeem Ahmad said, “My innocent son was implicated in a baseless case. Last year, during Amarnath land transfer issue all Kashmiris came out on roads and participated in the agitation and condemning the atrocities inflicted upon them for decades. Like other youth and children, my son, Nayeem also participated in the protests. On June 24 (2008) when my son was among the peaceful protesting youth at Nowhatta Chowk, police arrested him while dispersing the mob. Police station Nowhatta filed an FIR against him and produced a challan in the court of law, charging my son of being an anti-social element and the disrupter to law and order.”

He added, “After Nayeem’s arrest we got him released on bail and since then we had been pursuing his case in the court of law. Even his temporary work of being a Camera Assistant with a producer in Doordarshan, Srinagar got badly affected. After being entangled in the police net and court trial during his playing days, he had been under continuous stress and fear. He was learning with a producer in Doordarshan Srinagar but since police filed a case against him he could not further continue his work.”

Shameema, victim’s mother said, “We were fighting a fabricated case in the court law against Nayeem. Despite prosecution was going on, again police picked up my son from home and detained him for 10 days in the month of May 2009 during Parliamentary elections. By that time he was picked up by the then SHO, Muzaffar of police station Rainawari. When we asked him for the reason of Nayeem’s arrest, he replied that he has been kept under preventive detention so that he could be prevented from participating in protests. Whereas, the fact is that, he was never involved in any anti-social or any other activity causing disturbance. Then he was released after 10 days detention when election ended.” 

She added, “Since the first forged case was filed against my son, SHO Muzaffar has been raiding our house repeatedly and was often asking about Nayeem. The SHO was mostly raiding our house in the late hours and during the time my son had been working through the night hours at Doorsharshan. When he had not been finding Nayeem at home he had been harassing and abusing us for handing over Nayeem to him. He had made his life hell.”

Bashir Ahmad further said, “After continuous harassment to my son, eventually on June 7 (2009) at about 6:30pm, SHO Muzaffar along with some police personnel raided my house and asked for Nayeem. On this day Nayeem had gone to his maternal home. Instead of Nayeem the SHO picked up me and told my wife and daughters to bring Nayeem to the police station otherwise he would not release me. The SHO after detaining me in the police station Rainwari abused me and kicked me.”

“When Bashir Ahmad was arrested I called back Nayeem from his maternal home. Then in the evening at about 7:30 pm I along with my grandson, Nayeem and his mother went to meet SHO who at that time was present a Rainawari Chowk. We pleaded him for not detaining Nayeem and release his father. The SHO in return abused us all. When my grandson bowed down under SHO’s feet and begged for mercy. He kicked him and abused him. After maltreating us, the SHO ordered us to take Nayeem to police station. We took him there and then they released his father but detained him.” bemoaned Nayeem’s grandmother Zeba. 

According to the anxious parents they tried a lot to get him released but all in vain. Everyday the family members were visiting police station and asking for Nayeem’s release. The SHO according to the parents often replied that he would release him today, tomorrow or sometimes day after. With these excuses 10 days passed off. 

Farooq Ahmad, victim’s uncle said, “Lastly on the 10th day SHO called us on phone and intimated us to bring some clothes for Nayeem. When we asked why? He replied that he has been booked under PSA vide No. DMS/PSA/21/2009 Dated: 11-06-2009 and is about to be sent to Jammu Jail for detention. We got shocked on hearing this. We rushed to the police station talked to the SHO there. He told us that it is higher officials who got him booked under PSA.”

“Next day, he was sent to District Jail, Poonch, where only two Kashmiris are detained rest are from Jammu division. After about a week we visited Poonch Jail and it took us two complete days to reach there. On our meeting with him we found him in bad health condition as he has fallen ill there. We also found the Jail conditions very deteriorating, which can ruin the life of dear son. The official are callous they did not take mercy as how they send an innocent minor to such a place,” concluded dejected Bashir Ahmad.
Name of the Respondent: Mohammad Ismail Lone
R/o:  Nawbal Batpora, Dist: Kulgam.
Occupation: Private School Teacher in Srinagar.

Age: 55
Disappeared in the family: Son – Feroz Ahmad Lone / age = 25 / Education = 12th standard Pass. 

Date of disappearance: December 2, 2002
FATHER’S NARRATIVE ABOUT THE INDCIDENT:

On December 2, 2002 on the night of Shab-e-Qadr my son Feroz Ahmad (25) had gone to one of his distant relatives Mohammad Ayoub Paula’s house which is in our neighborhood for observing Shab-e-Qadr. While few persons including my son were performing prayers at about 10 pm 5 militants in civvies barged into the house. They directly entered the room where my son was praying. Two militants had entered the room while as rest had cordoned off the house. The militants had ordered Feroz to accompany them, which he refused. But he was taken away forcibly by the militants. 

The militants were of Hizbul Mujahidin outfit but they were supporting People’s Democratic Party (PDP), in Assembly elections 2002, which my son had objected. They were more like gangsters. Two of the abductees were Riyaz Ahmad Bhat S/o Abdul Salam of Batpora and Farooq Ahmad Paula S/o: Late Mohammad Akram Paula of Batapora. Both of the abductees were killed nearly two years after they abducted Feroz. Both of them were killed in custody after they were arrested by army.

Whereas, three more persons among the abductors were Imtiyaz Ahamd Paula S/o: Late Mohammad Akram Paula (brother of Farooq Paula) and Mohammad Hussain Malik S/o: Mohammad Maqbool Malik of Batpora. These persons were upper ground workers. Presently, Imtiyaz is a Rehbar-e-Taleem teacher at primary school Batapora while as Mohammad Hussain sits at house and remains associated with domestic work. Both Imtiyaz and Hussain are highly influential and have access to every agency. The last and main abductor was Imtiyaz Ahmad Malik S/o Mansoor Ahmad Malik R/o: Arwen, Bijbehara. Imtiyaz Malik runs a boot house at his native village Arwen. He is the most influential persons and has access to all the high ups of the administration and is hand in glove with army and other paramilitary troops. It was basically Imtiyaz who had entered the room and had abducted Feroz Ahmad.  

Due to the fear of said persons none of the intimates of Mohammad Ayoub’s family could dare to come to our house for informing us about the abduction of Feroz Ahmad. Next day, in the morning we were informed that Feroz has been abducted by the said gunmen. Since his abduction his whereabouts are still not known. Next day in the morning we visited the houses of the abductors. When we craved for Feroz’s release the family members of Imtiyaz Malik, Riyaz Bhat and Farooq Paula answered us that they don’t know anything about the said persons because of being militants they remain outside their houses. While as Imtiyaz Ahamad Paula and Hussain Paula who were the upper ground workers absconded from the village and were hiding in their relative’s houses in Srinagar. After continuously visiting the families of all abductees nothing divulged out. The relatives and family members of the abductees simply refused from having any knowledge about my son.

Due to the fear of retribution from the gunmen, we could not dare to approach the police to inform them about the abduction of Feroz Ahmad. We thought the abductors are associated with militants, and if we may complain against them, they may cause further damage to us. Eventually, we decided not to visit police station and the case could not get registered in the police station. But we searched him in the every nook and corner of the valley without any success and finally, we gave up the search as it proved futile.

We had ended all our efforts. We had a constant pain and trauma of losing Feroz. Then in the last week of June 2007, a strange thing happened. A letter came to our village on the name of Ghulam Mohammad Paula son of Mohammad Ramzan Paula. Ghulam Mohammad Paula is a medical assistant and resides in our village. The letter contained some information about my son Feroz Ahmad. This was informed to me by the daughter of Medical Assistant, Ghulam Mohammad Paula. She came to our house and said, “Papa had received a letter which contained some information about Feroz Bhaijan. Next day after the delivery of letter my wife approached Ghulam Mohammad and asked him about the letter. He replied that the letter was for Manzoor Ahmad son of Abdul Gani Paula and it was sent from Frisal, police station. Manzoor Ahmad is a released detainee. Then I again personally visited Ghulam Mohammad’s house and asked him about the letter. But this time he replied that the letter was regarding Manzoor Ahmad and was sent from Geneva. I asked him, why Manzoor would get a letter from Geneva. He replied that the in the letter some organization was asking about Manzoor Ahmad’s wellbeing after his release. I argued him as to why did he spoke a lie to my wife and told her that the letter was from Frisal police Station. On argued he got blushed. Then we approached Manzoor and asked him, had he received any letter? He replied that he was told by Ghulam Mohammad that a letter had come on his name but according to Manzoor Ghulam Mohammad had not given or shown the letter to Manzoor. This made us more skeptical about the letter.

When I got no clue about the letter then I approached postman of our area namely Mohammad Altaf of Arwen village. I asked him about the delivery of letter in our village in the month of June. He initially refused but after I insisted him he checked his records dairy and found that a letter dated 19/06/2007 addressed on the Name of: Ghulam Mohammad Paula, S/o: Mohammad Ramzan Paula, R/o Nawbal, Batpora was delivered by him on the given address. According to him the letter was sent from New Delhi with Speed Post No.240338653 I asked him about the contents in the letter but he simply showed ignorance and said that he does not know what was written in the letter. Then I approached Postmaster of Bijbehara post office. I request him to investigate into the matter of letter. The postmaster answered me that he would help me and told me to come after few days. Then after a month I approached the postmaster again. The postmaster replied that the letter was containing some information about Feroz. The postmaster had ascertained from postman Altaf that the letter contained information about my son. The postman Altaf during personal communication with postmaster had revealed that he saw Feroz’s name when the Ghulam Mohammad Paula opened letter to read that. Then to clarify more I met another postman who is close to Altaf. The postman got same information from Altaf that the letter was about Feroz Ahmad. Postman Altaf also revealed that the letter was sent by Red Cross but did not mention whether state Red Cross or International Committee of Red Cross. I approached both state Red Cross as well as International Committee of Red Cross but none of the two organizations acknowledged that any such letter bearing Speed Post No.240338653 was sent by their offices in Delhi.

Even on December 31, 2008, I approached SHRC Dalgate and submitted an application there for taking cognizance into the matter. Since I submitted my application nothing divulged out. I many a times attended the case at SHRC but nothing happened so far.

3 KILLED IN POLICE FIRING AT BARAMULLA

INDEFINITE CURFEW IMPOSED

June 29: Two persons were killed and 30 others sustained injuries in Baramulla when police and paramilitary troopers opened fire to disperse demonstrators protesting against the alleged misbehaviour with a woman by a police official. Following the shootout, authorities imposed indefinite curfew in town.

Hundreds of people took to streets to protest the alleged misbehaviour. They were demanding stern action against the accused policeman. The CRPF troopers and police deployed in strength in the area swung into action and lobbed tear smoke canisters to disperse them.

Amid clashes, police and troopers resorted to indiscriminate firing, killing Muhammad Saleem Wani son of Abdur Rashid Wani of Syed Karim Sahib, Baramulla, on the spot and injuring 30 others. The critically injured were rushed to SMHS hospital in Srinagar for specialized treatment where Tariq Ahmad Malik son of Saifudin Malik of Drangbal also succumbed to injuries.

A police official said that a woman Fareeda (name changed) of Sheeri Baramulla had gone to the police station, Baramulla, last evening to seek release of her husband Muhammad Yousuf Bhat detained on charges of facilitating the abduction of a minor girl. “Coming out of the police station, the woman alleged she was abused and harassed by one of the inquiry officers investigating the case,” he said.

The station house officer, Muhammad Abdullah told media the brother of the woman, Javed Ahmad Marazi, and her husband were involved in the kidnapping of a minor girl from Biner, Baramulla, on June 15 and were absconding from the area. The father of the kidnapped girl had identified the duo in his complaint. An FIR No 128/09 under section 363,109 RPC stands registered against them in the police station. “Acting on the complaint, police swung into action and arrested Bhat.”

The SHO said the woman had come to the police station on June 28 to demand her husband’s release. After being refused, she leveled baseless allegations against the officials. Meanwhile, police recovered the girl along with the kidnapper from the Boatman Colony, Bemina, Srinagar. The senior Superintendent of police, Viplav Kumar, said that it was a pure case of kidnapping of a minor but the incident had been manipulated by some vested interests in such a way that it led to violence.

“Police had to act on the complaint and arrested one of the accused but the miscreants gave a different twist to the incident,” he added.


The district magistrate of north Kashmir Baramulla ordered a time-bound magisterial inquiry by the additional district magistrate, Muhammad Ashraf Shanthoo, into the killing of two youth in police and CRPF firing.

The inquiry officer has been asked to investigate whether the use of force by the police/CRPF, which led to the killing of two youth, was proportionate considering the “nature and composition of protests.”


The inquiry officer has been asked to submit his report in 10 days. The senior superintendent of police will appoint a gazetted officer to assist the inquiry. “In case of disproportionate use of force, the forces/cops responsible should be identified besides the inquiry officer should look into whether the Standing Operation Procedure for maintaining law and order was followed or not,” said the district magistrate’s order.


Shanthoo would investigate the use of arms including rubber bullets in contravention to SOP by the security forces during the incident. “It would be investigated on the basis of the spots on the bodies of deceased hit by the bullets thereby affecting vital organs and leaving least chances of survival. And in such a case the cops responsible should be identified and punishment should be given accordingly,” the order said.


The investigating officer has been asked to investigate the veracity of the allegations leveled by a woman of Sheeri who had gone to the police station on June 28 to seek release of her husband detained on charges of facilitating the abduction of a minor girl. After coming out of the police station, she had alleged that she was abused and harassed by police following which protests had turned violent.

“The inquiry officer would also probe into the situation which had led to the injury on head and scars on the eyelids of the women,” the order said.

Next day on June 30, a youth was killed and a minor sustained grave injuries when paramilitary CRPF troopers opened fire to quell protesters at Baramulla. Witnesses told media that hundreds of youth took to the streets at Khanapora, Baramulla and tried to take out a procession. “Paramilitary troopers deployed there opened fire on the peaceful demonstrators injuring a youth Fayaz Ahmad Gojri. Bullet pierced through his chest and he started bleeding profusely. We called the hospital and asked for an ambulance. But CRPF troopers didn’t allow the ambulance to enter Khanpora and he succumbed to his injuries,” they added.

Earlier in the morning hundreds of youth defied the curfew in the Baramulla town and took to the streets to give vent to their ire. Protesters were demanding action against the policemen and troopers who had opened fire on the protestors on June 29 in which two youth were killed.

“As they tried to march ahead, police and CRPF men used force to quell them. They burst tear smoke canisters and later fired upon the protesters injuring scores of them. A bullet hit a minor Bilal Bashir, son of Bashir Ahmad Bhat near Cement Bridge. He was shifted to Srinagar for specialized treatment,” they said. Doctors attending upon Bilal termed his condition to be critical.

According to witness, an official of the 46 Rashtriya Rifles and his men along with a few civilians were beaten by the CRPF troopers when they were shifting Bilal to hospital in an army vehicle. “As the vehicle reached the main chowk we were stopped by the CRPF men. They dragged us and the RR personnel out of the vehicle and beat us,” said Javed Ahmad who was in the vehicle.

Meanwhile, a government spokesman said a murder case has been registered against the CRPF man who had reportedly fired without any provocation at Khanpora, Baramulla, this evening killing one person. The CRPF authorities have been asked to handover the troopers to Baramulla police for arrest and investigation.

In the late night development government decided to withdraw CRPF from Baramulla town with an immediate effect. A top official told media, “It has been decided that Jammu and Kashmir Armed Police will replace CRPF in Baramulla town immediately. Action would be taken against the CRPF men who were involved in the firing incident at Khanpora Baramulla in which one person died.”

YOUTH HIT BY TEARGAS SHELL SUCCUMBS 

A week after the killing of a youth by teargas shell in the downtown area of Srinagar, another youth namely Nisar Ahmad Mir (23) son of Ali Mohammad resident of Ganai Mohalla, Old Barzulla, Srinagar succumbed to his injuries after battling for 4 days at the Sher-i-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences where doctors declared that Nisar had received multiple brain injuries, which caused his death. On June 1, Nisar was hit on the head by a teargas shell fired by police.

The locals alleged that police personnel of police station Sadder intently targeted and fired the shell on his head, causing grave injuries to him, which ultimately resulted into his death.

The killing of the youth agitated whole Barzulla area. As soon as people heard about the death of Nisar they thronged to streets and started to protest against police. The protester raised pro-freedom and anti-India slogans. They also demanded action against the police officer at whose behest the cops targeted and fired tear-smoke shell towards him. 

Shortly, after the incident the reporter of The Informative Missive visited the area and talked to the victim family and other locals of the area.

Sheeraz Ahmad Mir, elder brother of slain Nisar while talking to this reporter stated: “On June 1 whole of the valley was reverberating with the protests against the rape and murder case of two girls in Shopian. On the same day strong protests were also observed in our area which ended in the afternoon. For the whole day my brother Nisar was inside the house. He went out of the house at about 5pm to offer the afternoon prayers. After coming back from mosque, he found the situation normal. He entered into our bakery shop and took some bread in a polythene bag to deliver them to a barbecue seller near Bone and Joint Hospital Barzulla. It was his routine evening job as we on daily bases sell the bread to the barbecue seller. Unfortunately when he left for Barzulla, few minutes before some youth of Barzulla were engaged in stone pelting with police at the exit point of our locality. Nisar left through the same way and before appearing out on the main road he had confirmed from some locals standing on the roadside whether the situation is normal or not. The locals had told him that everything is normal. He had then moved ahead. At the exit point of our locality there is a curved road, as soon Nisar crossed this curved road he faced some police cops who had kept their guns aimed toward the road. According to some eyewitness when my brother saw cops lie in wait he tried to run back but callous cops fired a targeted teargas shell from a point blank range on his head and he had fallen unconscious on the ground.”

He added: “Some local youth of area who witnessed the incident tried to lift Nisar from the spot but cops resorted to aerial firing and teargas shelling and didn’t allow youth to pick him up from the spot, where he was lying down in moribund. Eyewitnesses further told us that police didn’t allow anybody to shift him to the hospital for about 10 minutes during which he lost a lot of blood. Somehow few locals had managed to rush him to the SMHS hospital, where he was bandaged and instantly shifted to the SKIMS (Sheri-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences) Soura. For 3 days he remained alive on ventilator and no surgery was conducted to him because the doctors said he had received multiple brain injuries and his skull bone was fractured. Eventually he succumbed to his injuries on June 4 at 9am.”

“The merciless cops killed my son without any reason. He was innocent and very introvert in the locality. He never ever participated in any violence related incident or any other erroneous activity. His life was confined only from running a provision store and playing football in leisure time. My beloved son was a very good football player and was associated with Solina Sports Club. He was very kind and wise in the family; he gave up his studies after passing the matriculation and started to support his father in his bakery work. Police snatched everything from me”. Aggrieved Fatima, mother of the deceased. 

Nisar’s killing sparked off massive protests in the area on June 4. Police resorted to tear smoke shelling followed by aerial firing to prevent his funeral procession from proceeding to Hyderpora where people wanted the Hurriyat Conference (G) chairman, Syed Ali Shah Geelani, to offer his Jinaza (funeral prayers). 

According to locals in police action many youth of the Barzulla and adjoining areas got injured but people continuously protested and demanded punishment to the guilty cops. Lastly Nisar’s dead body was brought back to Barzulla, where his last rites were performed and then his body was laid in rest in the local graveyard.

Sheraaz Ahmad further said: “Police Station Saddar filed a false case of stone pelting against Nisar because they knew that his killing would be questioned. To avert any trouble or law and order problem they portrayed off him as a stone pelter. Initially they were ready to compromise and offered us money but after the situation got tense in the area. They retracted and said that Nisar got accidentally hit by the shell while dispersing protester whenever no protest was going on in the area.”

“We know nothing would happen and nobody can give us justice because we have seen so many other cases of the same nature wherein nothing has happened.”  Concluded Sheeraz. 

TORTURE TESTIMONIALS
Name: Sheikh Iqbal Phiroz Ahmed 

Age: 31 years 

Occupation: Shop Owner 

Address: Amira Kadal, Srinagar 

Ph no. 9797048042

Education: 12th std 

Religion: Muslim 

Nationality: Indian / Kashmiri 

Iqbal had gone to Pakistan between the periods of 1990-93 as part of the Pakistan trained Militancy. He says he went there as he always wanted to visit Pakistan and had supported the pro Azadi movement. A group of youth from Srinagar had accompanied him and he sees no wrong in receiving the training as he already had family there and he was going to live with them. He says he was trained at Muzzafarabad region of Pakistan. 

But in 1993, due to increasing pressure from family to return to valley, he came back without any links with the militants. Since then militants had been approached him to carry out tasks for them in the valley, but he has an education now and a relatively good life he has categorically told them that he would not support them in any activity. He claims that he enrolled in a college and had no links with the militant group since returning to the valley. 

In January 1994 when he was visiting a friend of his in the Hotel Khalsa in Srinagar he was told by the staff there that the area had been cordoned off by the army and they were looking out for him. He was then picked up by the militia army -2 grenade battalion. The men wore black commodore gear and put a black cloth over him and covered his head and eyes. They also tied his hands to his back. He was then taken to an army camp nearby. 

The torture started almost immediately as he was put on a cement block like structure and all his clothes were taken off. Cols water was being poured on his back as the men started beating him with wooden planks. A man sat on his chest later and kept beating him and told him to accept that he was still involved with the militant group and tell them where the weapons and the group’s men were. As he refused to admit to their will they intensified the torture. 

They put electric nodes on his genital parts and chest, as two men continued to stretch his legs and administered the electric shocks. Due to the torture he admitted reluctantly of being a terrorist still, and hoarding of weapons. The torture then stopped, according to Iqbal it had been going on for about an hour. 

The army was then to accompany him for recovering the weapons that he had claimed to have, but knowing that there was nothing he could give he told the raiding party that there was nothing he could provide. He was then further tortured in the same way and after fainting he was put in a cell at the camp. 

Iqbal claims that he was in the camp for two months during which time he was in the beginning tortured in the fashion described above almost everyday for half an hour. Later the torture session took place every alternate day and with increasing infrequency as at the end of his incarnation it became every 10 days. When he fainted there was minimum medical assistance given as he thinks that they did not want him to die. He was left after two months as he had given them nothing concrete. He left for Leh immediately to recoup and also got medical attention through private means there. 

Iqbal was then picked up for the second time in December 1994 by the Border Security Forces (BSF). He claims that he gave the commander two television sets to be let off and as soon as the family could arrange for the same he was let off. 

In March 1995 he was again picked up by the BSF when he was visiting Hotel Khalsa, Srinagar. According to him a car with commanders came to the hotel and asked him to accompany them. They forced him to wear a black cloth on his face and over his eyes. They took him to a BSF camp nearby and as he was blindfolded he has no idea of the location of the camp. The torture started soon after. They took off his clothes and put him on a cement slab. Poring water on his naked body they started beating him with wooden planks. A heated iron was placed on his back leaving him with excruciating pain. They further placed the electric nodes on his private parts and passed electric currents through them. The shocks this time were given on the soles of the feet also. They further hung his body mid air and hit him with planks to force him to admit that he worked in the militant outfit and reveal the whereabouts of others in the outfit. The torture lasted 10-15 minutes and later he was put in a cell. He was tortured for 4 days but getting nothing conclusive from him he was let off without charges. He later went to a private hospital and was treated for almost 5 days for the injuries he had endured due to torture. He still has his back completely burned and injuries from this torture. This time he stayed in the valley and continued with his education. 

Later in May- June 1997 he was picked up by the Badamibad army and taken to the base camp in Srinagar. The torture methods used this time were electric shock to his genitals and stomach area and he was hit on his head with rods. The torture lasted for 10-15 minutes daily and he was in the camp for 4 days after which he was taken to the Ram Munshi Bagh police station and a case registered against him. No torture took place at the station after the handover. The charges against him related to him being to the ISI and aiding the foreign militants in Srinagar. He was given initial medical aid though according to him it was not adequate. Also the family was allowed to visit him at the station. He was in the police station for 15 days after which he received bail. The case is till pending. 

In August – September 1997 he was again picked up after a raid at his home by the Special Task force and tortured in much the same fashion as earlier for 2 days. This time they wanted to know where the ammunition of the militant group was horded. On not receiving any information from him he was let off without any charges. He was again hospitalized and had to bear expenses for the same. His family members also were threatened and his young brother beaten up as they had refused to reveal where he was during the raid.

In January 1998 he was again picked up by the surrendered militants group that works with the army and tortured at a hotel to reveal the whereabouts of militant group members. In this instance he was beaten with wooden planks and water was pored on his back which was sore with injuries. In half a day though seeing that he had no information he was let off.  

His name is now on the watch list of the Indian army, RAW, IB and the local police stations. He fears further prosecution and dreads the day that he would be picked up again. Due to the injuries incurred he has been unable to function properly in society as he claims that he has dysfunctional genitals and also walks with a limp so is unable to marry. 

Name: Riyaz Khan (used in Missive)

Age: 22 years 

Occupation: Daily wage earner 

Education: 6th class 

Association: Brother was a militant with the Harkat Ul Mujahideen 

Residence: Chakalipura, Anantnag 

Indian/ Kashmiri 

Since 2000 his brother had become a member of the Harkat-ul-Mujahideen group, the army used to continuously visit the family asking them to divulge the details regarding him. Almost every day, he claims that the army used to visit the house hurls abuses at them and ransacked the house at times when they were informed that his brother had visited the house. 

The first time of his torture by the army forces was during the year of 2002 but Riyaz doesn’t remember the month of the torture. He was picked up by the army on the pretense that they would interrogate him about his brother. He claims that he was taken to the Panchatalan army camp near his village. He was asked by the army to become a porter with them and go to Tangdara in Kufara. Riyaz was also beaten up at the camp and verbal abuses were thrown at him. 

Riyaz did not want to become a porter with the army as he had heard of terrible conditions of work and he would be then dependent on the forces which scarred him. Thus he refused to work with the army. This angered them further and they used to beat with sticks and batons till his body turned blue. They also use to warn him of dire consequences if he did not comply to their demands. Sensing that this would go on till he submitted Riyaz hatched a plan to run away from the camp with the aid of another youth who was also being asked to be a porter. Riyaz doesn’t go into the details of the escape from the camp as he was not comfortable with them. Thus he escaped from the camp after 2 days of staying there and being tortured continually. He had gone without food for these two days and ran to his home where he hid for a while before going back to his daily routine. 

He was again picked up by the army after a month and was beaten up as he had escaped from their custody. This time though he says that they did not ask for his services. He had been caught in the morning and was beaten with sticks and batons. His hands were also tied to his back so that he could not move while they were beating him with bare hands. He was left in the evening after a day long interrogation. 

The third time he was picked up by the army from his house. This was around 2003 and this time he was blindfolded before been taken to the camp. He was beaten up with bare hands and wooden planks and asked if he had any information about the militant hideouts or the place that they kept the ammunition at. He was beaten up the entire day after which he was put in a cell. His parents had already by then come with villagers to the camp and hearing their pleas and knowing that Riyaz wasn’t able to give any information the army let him go. 

The fourth time Riyaz was again picked up by the army, this time with his brother. They were blindfolded and taken to the camp. They were first put in a trench and made to do sit ups in a nude condition. They were also hit with gun butts and bare hands till their body turned blue due to the sores. They were in the camp for 2 days and were continuously beaten. Riyaz believes that they were left because the army knew that they were innocent and had no information to give. 

There are no official records of his detention and no cases filed against him. Riyaz believes that the torture stopped only once .his brother who was a militant was killed in an encounter. His body still aches due to the wounds inflicted and he has some trouble while doing physical activity which is a must in the profession that he is in. His medical bills have been minimal so far. 

APDP FLAYS CONVERSION OF PAPA II GUEST HOUSE
June 28: The Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons during this month’s sit in protested the government order, of converting the erstwhile interrogation centre-PAPA II at Hari Niwas into a hospitality facility for visiting ambassadors and diplomats. They also condemned the government for failing to trace their loved ones, who, they allege, disappeared in custody of the armed forces. They reiterated their pledge to force the government to give them the whereabouts of all the missing persons. 

According to an APDP statement, there are scores of testimonies which point at the disappearance of detainees lodged in Hari Niwas in the early 90s.No one knows what happened to the disappeared persons. “The government justification that the move to convert PAPA II into a hospitality centre for ambassadors and diplomats will generate revenue for the state will tantamount to humiliate the relatives of victims of desaparecidos,” says the APDP statement.

“The conversion of Hari Niwas into a hospitality facility, its subsequent renovation and construction has destroyed the vital evidence about the disappeared persons that were once kept in this dreaded interrogation centre. This loss of evidence could hamper the international probe if initiated in this regard in the future.”

The APDP has termed this as a deliberate move by the state for camouflaging the structure and the incidents that happened there. “This move will only help the perpetrators and shall weaken the cases of relatives of disappeared persons. The state does not want the truth to come out,” says the statement.

The APDP demanded that torture and interrogation centres must be protected so that, future investigations and probes can be carried out to know the whereabouts of disappeared persons. The efforts of the J&K govt. is in contravention of the recent international practice on how to deal with the prison sites or prison compounds where severe human rights violations were committed. In different countries like South Africa, Cambodia and Argentine etc the torture centers have been converted into memorials and museums to remind the future generation of horrific war crimes and crimes against humanity committed against people by the governments. The APDP has decided to campaign against the contravention of the torture centre into a posh hotel by appealing the conscious of the dignitaries. 
FARMER SHOT AT BY TROOPERS, CRITICAL

MENDHAR MLA DEMANDS ACTION

June 7: Frustrated by a fruitless search for militants for several hours, a Rashtriya Rifles soldier shot at and wounded a farmer in Mendhar area of Poonch district, locals said. Doctors at Jammu Medical College termed the victim’s condition as critical. Police has not filed a case against the accused so far. 

 Villagers of Kasbalari, 20 kms from Mendhar town, told media that on Sunday morning (June 7) soldiers cordoned off the village and conducted searches for several hours. The village falls under the jurisdiction of 39 battalion of Rashtriya Rifles. At about 10 AM when the soldiers found nothing during searches, a soldier aimed his gun at farmer was working in his field, and fired a volley of fire. 

 The victim has been identified as Mukhtiar Ahmed, 28, son of Fateh Mohammad. After leaving the farmer half-dead the soldiers fled from the spot. The villagers took him to the hospital in Mendhar immediately, but doctors there referred him to Medical College Hospital Jammu, saying his condition was critical. The injured was not responding to the treatment till the last reports came in, said sources. 

 While confirming the incident, Deputy Inspector General of Police Rajouri- Poonch range, S D Singh Jamwal said that a police team has been sent to the village to ascertain the facts. He said “stern action would be taken against the soldiers if found guilty.” Police has not filed a case so far. 

AMNESTY ON SHOPIAN INCIDENT
June 11: The Amnesty International has criticized New Delhi for the continued human rights violations in Kashmir and the recent rape and murder of two women allegedly by troopers. In its report released on June 10, the Amnesty called on Indian authorities to immediately carry out fair and impartial investigations into the allegations of paramilitary CRPF involvement in the murders and sexual assault of the two women.

The Amnesty report said police and paramilitary forces had resorted to firing at protesters in several places including Shopian, Baramulla and Srinagar. “Reports from hospitals that admitted the injured indicate that troops fired both live ammunition and rubber bullets.”    

Amnesty International’s Asia-Pacific Director, Sam Zarifi said authorities should ensure that troops comply with international human rights standards on law enforcement, in particular those relating to the use of force to deal with protestors. “Any instance of excessive use of force should be impartially investigated. These protests are about the ongoing failure of the Indian government to bring troopers to justice for serious human rights violations.”

The report said police had failed to interview potential witnesses even as the state authorities ordered a judicial inquiry into the murders. The Amnesty called for repeal of the security legislation in force in Jammu and Kashmir that facilitates impunity by providing discretionary powers to troopers and effectively enabling them to violate human rights. It also expressed serious concern over the effectiveness of past inquiries ordered by the authorities into human rights violations including unlawful killings, enforced disappearances and sexual assault of women.
The report said that Amnesty had received information on 8 June that at least four pro-freedom Kashmiri leaders had been arbitrarily detained. “No charge has been leveled against them so far,” the Amnesty said. “One of the detained leaders, Syed Ali Geelani was taken to an unknown destination. Yasin Malik, Javed Mir and Mirwaiz Umar Farooq were placed under house arrest.”

Amnesty called on the authorities to disclose details of their detention including as to how they are being treated and immediately release those detained unless they are charged with a recognizable criminal offence. Amnesty International has also said that they should only be held in official and acknowledged places of detention and brought promptly before an independent judicial authority.

GANDERBAL RESIDENTS ALLEGE SACRILEGE OF MASJID
June 13: At least 20 protestors were injured when police resorted to heavy baton charging and teargas shelling against the alleged sacrilege of a Masjid at Ganderbal.Police lobbed teargas shells inside the school in Ganderbal.Ten girl students fell unconscious while 20 protesters were injured as teargas shells were hurled on protesters and even inside the schools.
According to the reports hundreds of people including men and women from various villages in Ganderbal took to streets near Duderhama Bridge at Tawheed Chowk.Raising pro-freedom and anti police slogans, the protesters blocked traffic on Tumulla-Ganderbal roads for hours.

The protesters alleged that police entered Tawheed Masjid,near Qamariya Park, along with shoes considered as ‘sacrilegious’. The incident occurred on Friday afternoon (June 12) when police chased away protesters demanding punishment to those behind Shopian incident, involving murder and rape of two women.

Meanwhile, a police party, headed by SDPO Ganderbal, Tahir Geelani, reached the spot and resorted to baton charge on the protesting people, demanding action against the cops. As the protesters showed resistances, reports said, police resorted to massive teargas shelling. In police action, sources said that twenty persons including some students of Boys Degree College Duderhama were injured.

The police fired few teargas shells inside the Girl’s Higher Secondary School Saloora, in which 10 girl students fell unconscious. The girls were rushed to hospital. However lecturers of the institution alleged that when the incident took place they informed DC Ganderbal but he did not responded. They also alleged that hospital administration also avoided their information and did not bother to send ambulance.
Meanwhile, Deputy Commissioner Ganderbal said that he has sought a report and has asked Superintendent of Police to file the same by June 15.DC Ganderbal added that the action will be taken only after the report by SP is submitted. “I visited the spot myself and also interacted with the principal of Girls higher secondary school,” he added.

SP Ganderbal Imtiyaz Hussain Mir said, “Some teargas shells mistakenly landed in school and if any police official has lobbed them deliberately I will take them to task. Such unfortunate incidents will not be repeated in future.”

COP ARRESTED FOR RAPE, MURDER
June 8: Police arrested a cop for allegedly raping a girl and murder of her grandmother during a subsequent clash at Tangmarg.According to police sources a 14 year girl of Konchipora village of Tangmarg was allegedly raped by a policeman Nazir Ahmad Bhat, former PSO of MLA Tangmarg Ghulam Hassan Mir.

Police sources said Nazir was having family relation with Bashir Ahmad. A fortnight ago Rifat and Nazir left for the office State Board of School Education and did not return for a week. "The family told us that they trusted Nazir and did not worry about the girl," police said. The cop had also told her that he will provide her a government job. "During the week the policeman had kept Rifat at some undisclosed location," police said.

Yesterday after a week when Rifat returned home, she was ill and was taken to sub district hospital Tangmarg where doctors declared she was raped many times. Early this morning the incident triggered off clashes between the two families. Ghulam Muhammad Bhat brother of the policeman and village numbardar kicked grandmother of the girl and she died on spot. The deceased was identified as Fazi Begum. Her body was taken to sub district hospital Tangmarg where here postmortem was conducted.

The incident sparked off massive protest. The protestors blocked Srinagar Tangmarg road and were demanding stern action against the accused. A heavy contingent of police and CRPF led by SDPO Tangmarg appeared on the scene and pacified the protestors. The tourist traveling to tourist resort Gulmarg had to stop for some time till police pacified the protestors.

A police team led by SHO Tangmarg swung into the action and arrested policeman Nazir on the charges of rape while his brother Ghulam Muhammad involving in kicking the woman managed to escape. Police has launched manhunt to arrest him.  
‘MOLESTATION’ BID TRIGGERS PROTEST

June 26: At least six persons, including two media person, were injured when police and paramilitary CRPF troopers resorted to baton charge and fired tear smoke canisters to free a CRPF man who had been nabbed by locals for allegedly molesting a woman at Soura. Police later registered an FIR against the accused and arrested him. The trouble began when a man, who later turned out to be a CRPF personnel, tried to molest a veiled woman, locals alleged 

 “We caught him red handed and his identity card revealed that he was from CRPF,” locals said.

 As the word about the incident spread, locals poured out of their houses and beat the accused personnel to pulp. The police arrived at the spot and asked the locals to handover the culprit to them. However, they refused, saying, “We will hand him over in presence of media only.” As the police team tried to rescue the CRPF man the protesters attacked the police Gypsy and over-turned it injuring a policeman. Later reinforcements rushed to the area and used force to quell the protesters. At least six persons were injured in the police action, witnesses said.   

 “They entered our houses and broke the window panes. Even if anyone who was found peeping through the windows was beaten mercilessly,” locals alleged. 

 A police official told media the CRPF trooper, Balwant Singh of 158 battalion CRPF posted at Soura, had been arrested and a FIR No 55, under section 294 had been registered against him.

MEDIA ON RECEIVING END

 “Police snatched my camera and started beating me. I fell into a drain and policemen pointed guns at me to shoot me but a woman from the neighborhood threw herself over me and saved my life,” Imtiyaz Gulzar, the cameraman of SEN-channel told media.

Imtiyaz along with other media persons were covering the protests at Soura when police and CRPF treated them with gun butts and tear gas shells. Imtiyaz received serious injuries on his back and his legs and left arm are broken. 

 “We were only doing our job but police attacked us without giving any warning,” he said. The troopers did not allow media to talk to the locals even after the protests had subsided. The SP, Hazratbal, Maqsood-uz-Zaman, said the police did not beat anyone, though accepting the police snatched the cameras of video-journalists.

 “We did not beat or stop anyone from carrying out their duties. No one from media was injured,” he said.

PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED WOMAN KILLED IN BIJBEHARA
June 20: Mystery shrouds death of a physically challenged woman mother of two children, whose throat slit body was recovered from her house at Kandipora Bijbehara in South Kashmir’s Islamabad district late last night, official sources told media. Sources said Khatija, 45 wife of Fayaz Ahmad was found in pool of blood by one of the children who were asleep along with her. The boy, they said cried for help, which caught the attention of the locals who rushed to the spot. The locals called the police and team of officials including Superintendent of police, SDPO and Station House Officer reached the spot and took custody of the throat slit body.
Sources said that an autopsy was carried on the body at district hospital by a team of three doctors-Dr Javaid, Dr Fiza and Dr Shubina-who established that death, has occurred due to stabbing by some sharp edged tool. Sources said that the husband of the woman, Fayaz Ahmad, a laborer by profession was not present in the house. They said that Fayaz was in Awantipora in Pulwama district at the time of the incident.

Reports said that the body of the slain woman was kept at the hospital for several hours forcing people to stage a demonstration against the hospital authorities saying no doctor was present in the hospital to conduct the autopsy. “A case has been registered and an investigation has been started,”SSP Showkat Ahmad Malik told media. He said that police is examining all the details and they are working on them.

“We will nab the culprit soon as a team headed by SDPO Bijbehara Shafat Ahmad has been formulated to solve the case,” the SSP added. 

PUBLIC SAFETY ACT 
June 9: Eight pro-freedom activists have been booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) and shifted to Kotbalwal and Kathua jails.
June 10:  After slapping the draconian Public Safety Act on more pro-freedom leaders, the government has shifted them to Jammu jails. A person can be kept in jail for two years without trial under the provisions of this act.
Official sources said the Government has booked Muhammad Ashraf Sehrai, Shabir Ahmad Shah, Muhammad Salim Nanaji, Masarat Alam and Muhammad Yousuf Mir under PSA.
Shabir Ahmad Shah and Muhammad Saleem Nanaji have been shifted to Udhampur Jail.Masarat Alm Bhat, who has been booked 13 times under the Act so far, has been taken to Rajouri Sub-Jail Ashraf Sehrai and Muhammad Yousuf Mir have been taken to Kotbalwal and Kathua jail respectively. The District Magistrate Srinagar was not available for comment despite repeated efforts.
June 11: The Dukhtran-e-Millat chief Syeda Asiya Andrabi has been booked under Public Safety Act and is being shifted to Central Jail, Jammu, despite her deteriorating health, sources said. After Asiya’s medical examination, they said, the doctors reported chronic problems in her knee, disc problem, bone dislocation and bronchitis, and advised she should not travel by road. “But administration is adamant to shift her to Jammu by road as early as possible. They are in fact planning to shift her Thursday night only,” sources said.

“Asiya was taken to police control room for medical examination doctors advised a complete rest for her. It is for the third time in last six months when PSA has been slapped on Andrabi. 
Asiya’s counsel, advocate Mir Shafaqat Hussain, said she had been suffering from multiple health problems and was bed ridden for four months. He said an application was moved before the CJM this morning, seeking permission for interviewing Asiya who has been under arrest at women police station Rambagh for three days past. “We found her in bad health and moved another application for shifting her to SMHS hospital for treatment,” he said.

He said the court asked for a report from the police on her arrest and medical checkup. “The report produced by the police says she has been booked under PSA. It also said that she has been taken to PCR for medical examination,” he said, adding, “The report about her PSA was submitted in the evening so we could not appeal for her proper treatment.”
Asiya Andrabi has been booked under the Public Safety Act for asking people to assemble at Eidgah and demonstrate against Shopian double rape and murder. 

 In the three-page dossier the district magistrate Srinagar has charged Asiya with “supporting the separatist agenda and giving programmes parallel to the other separatist groups.”

 
The dossier reads: “Acting on this agenda, you yourself gave a call for women to gather in Eidgah on June 7. You managed to gather some women in Nowhatta area and while proceeding towards Eidgah you were found carrying sharp-edged weapon.” 

 “You are undertaking various activities and give them religious color to further secessionist agenda,” it reads, adding, “You have been found in close association with secessionist elements and a special role being has assigned to you to ensure women’s participation in carrying out the illegal programmes of Hurriyat Conference (G). During land row agitation in June 2008 you played the assigned role. For illegal activities you were detained under PSA. After your release you continued illegal activities… ”

 The Dukhtaran chief has also been labeled as “being detrimental to the state’s security.” “It is clear that your activities are highly pre-judicial to the maintenance of security of the state, under such compelling circumstances it has become imperative to detain you under Public Safety Act 1978, for which the orders are being issued separately,” the dossier adds.
June 24: The acting Chairman of the Hurriyat Conference (G) Ghulam Nabi Sumjhi, has been booked under Public Safety Act and was shifted to Kathua Jail in Jammu.Sumjhi was arrested near Ali Jan complex when he, along with other Hurriyat activists, was going to Shopian.He was detained in Rajbagh police station. The Hurriyat spokesman, Ayaz Akbar, said another activist, Muhammad Shafi Lone has also been booked under PSA.”He was arrested from his residence during the night and has been booked under PSA,” he said.
GOVERNMENT BANS CABLE NEWS OPERATIONS IN KASHMIR
June 5: The Chief Minister Omar Abdullah has banned operation of news by local cable television operations after blaming them for telecasting inflammatory news which reportedly flared up the violence in Kashmir on the pretext of rape and murder of two women in Shopian in south Kashmir last week.
Governor Vohra during governor’s rule on August, 24, 2008 last year had also stopped the channels in view of their dubious role in worsening law and order situation.However, the governor’s administration was criticized by the political parties including Omar’s National Conference and described the governor’s act as trampling the press freedom.
There are half a dozen local operators who air news through their cable network in Srinagar.Likewise, cable operators in other districts also run news channels without any permission from information and broadcasting ministry. However, the channels are allowed to air entertainment programmes under local law after seeking permission from local district magistrate.
Srinagar’s district magistrate, Mehraj-ud-din Kakroo, in exercise of powers under section 11 (1) of the Cable Television Network (regulation) Act 1995,has issued orders to stop immediately the telecasting of all news and other items which are inflammatory in nature and thereby disturbing the peace and tranquility of general public, an official spokesman said.
Interestingly, the cable news channels have been operating in the state with the patronage of politicians and police alike.NC politicians including its rural development minister Ali Mohammad Sagar get maximum coverage on the local news channels besides senior police officers.
A senior bureaucrat on anonymity said that the practice is encouraged by the politicians.otherwise, the state was serious to close down these unauthorized channels much earlier.Surprisingly, local cable operators’ air national news channels on their whims after charging the national channels for giving the slot in the cable networking, sources said. The Omar Abdullah administration, it is learned, is also taking action against SMS news service in the state. The practice of disseminating news by SMS on mobile phones has of late become common. Many individuals are running SMS news channels in the state without any authority, they said.
Governor Vohra last year had even stopped SMS service in the state for sometime and the Supreme Court evenly upheld the decision.However, the service was resumed by telecom companies on the instructions of state government sources added.

COPS FIRE ON PROTESTORS IN SHOPIAN

                TROOPERS GO BERSERK IN AZAD BASTI
June 26: At least five persons were injured two of them critically when police and paramilitary CRPF troopers opened fire on peaceful protesters at Shirmal,Shopian.Eyewitness told media that hundreds of peaceful protesters from Nazimpora,Tukroo and adjacent villages tried to stage a protest demonstration and headed towards Shopian in the noon to offer Friday prayers at Jamia Masjid Shopian.
“Their march was foiled by police and CRPF personnel, who were deployed in strength on the Srinagar-Shopian road. The protestors had to return back,” they said. As they reached near Shirmal village the police and CRPF troopers intercepted the protesters who started raising anti-police, anti-CRPF and pro-Islamic slogans. The CRPF troopers, eyewitnesses said, abused them and police fired tear smoke canisters to quell the protesters.
According to eyewitnesses, the protesters refused to budge and tried to march ahead. “The CRPF and police personnel fired towards the protesters to stop them from moving ahead. At least five protestors were injured, two of them critically in the police action,” they said.
Muhammad Shafi of Shirmal was hit by a bullet in his abdomen while Syed Khalid of Nazimpora, Shopian and Manzoor Ahmad Sheikh of Paswal, Shopian received injuries in leg.Shafi was shifted to SMHS hospital while two others were taken to Bone and Joint hospital for specialized treatment.

“We can identify the policeman who opened fire on peaceful protestors. He is a local of Narpora village. We requested him not to open fire as it will kill innocents but he didn’t pay any heed towards our pleas,” said Tahira, one of the eyewitnesses.
While confirming the police firing, a police spokesman said, “A mob attacked the Forest Complex Shirmal, in which deployments was stationed for law and order duties. The mob attacked the complex by heavily pelting and damaging it. The deployments were provoked extremely, resulting in an incident of firing in which three persons were injured. All of them were shifted to Srinagar hospitals.”
Meanwhile, the residents of Azad Basti Natipora took to roads after CRPF personnel beat people returning to homes after offering the evening prayers.” Without any provocation the CRPF personnel cops beat several Nimazees,”said Ghulam Hassan,a local. He alleged that the CRPF personnel barged in more than dozen houses and smashed the window and glass panes. “They also smashed the glass panes of the parked vehicles, “alleged Hassan.After the incident, the youth of the area took to roads and staged pro-freedom demonstrations.
TRYING TO SAVE A BOY FROM DEATH, MUDASIR ALMOST LOST HIS LIFE
June 27: Mudasir, 22, a footwear seller is lying on ground and his back is strapped in white bandage. “I was shot at the back by CRPF and police,” Mudasir, a resident of Batpora said. “After offering Nimaz, I started walking toward Sopore market. That time stone pelting was going near the Bhat complex. They were hurling stones toward the CRPF camp stationed near the State Bank of India. “He said, as the CRPF troopers chased the stone pelters, people started running for shelter.

“I took refuge at MET School,” Mudasir said. “As I peeped through a hole in the Iron Gate, I saw CRPF troopers ready to drive their vehicles over a boy Zubair Ahamad Dar. He was forcibly kept near the tyres of one-ton vehicle. “Sensing trouble, Mudasir along with his friends came out on road and started crying for help.
“CRPF and police chased us,” he said. “As we started fleeing, the violent troopers shot at us. I received rubber bullet in my back. “On Friday (June 26), the residents of Batpora said soon after finishing Friday prayers, they started peaceful protest and marched from Jamia Bridge to High Bridge. 

The residents said when the protest began to disperse, CRPF and police swung into action and resorted to firing, tear shelling and beating of people. In retaliation, the residents said people came on roads and started pelting stones at CRPF.Zubair Lone was not lucky. “He was mercilessly beaten,” a resident of Batpora, Umar Rashid said. “He was moving toward his home near the State Bank of India. CRPF men called him. He went there. When he reached toward them, they caught hold of him and started beating,” he said.

Rashid said CRPF men kept him as shield against stone pelters. “He became unconscious and was shifted to a Srinagar hospital for treatment,” he said.

Another injured, Faizan Farooq, an eighth standard student was also shifted to Srinagar after receiving a bullet injury on his hand. “We were coming out of the Masjid after prayers,” Faizan’s father, Farooq Ahmad said. “People started running. We too joined. Faizan told me that he felt as if his hand was burning. When we examined, he had received a bullet shot. We rushed him to the Bone and Joint hospital.”

Umar Rashid of Khushaadpora, Batpora was hit by a bullet in the arm. He too was shifted to Srinagar for treatment. Asif Ahmad Dar received rubber bullet on head while Jehangir Gazi on shoulder. “Afterwards CRPF and police contingents stormed our homes and damaged them,” a resident Ghulam Burhaan said. “At least 15 houses were damaged.”

SSP Baramulla, Viplav Kumar said protesters on Friday (June 26) attacked a bunker. “In retaliation, some people were injured,” Kumar said. “However, people have some complaints. They can register complaints.” 
GIVE EX-GRATIA, JOB TO FAKE ENCOUNTER VICTIM: SHRC
June 28: State Human Rights Commission has asked government to sanction Rs one lakh as ex-gratia relief and a government job to a family member of old city resident who was killed by Special Task Force in 2003.According to media Muhammad Ramzaan Bhat of Misken Bagh Nowpora Srinagar, according to his wife Jameela was picked up by the STF on 11 November, 2003 in the broad day light. Later he was shifted to a camp. 

“When we reached the camp and sought his release, the STF men assured us that he will be released within two hours. But the next day his bullet ridden body was recovered from Rainawari,” media quoted Jameela as saying in her petition to the SHRC.Acting on the petition the Commission filed a case and asked police to file a report. 

The police in its report termed Bhat as a ‘dreaded militant’ and ‘wanted’. The report also said that Bhat was killed in an encounter at Rainawari after getting information of his presence.

However, SHRC took the statements of all the persons including eyewitnesses related to the case and revealed that on that particular day no encounter had taken place at Rainawari and that Bhat was murdered in broad day light after arresting him in presence of hundreds of people. 

His body, the Commission found, had been thrown at a public place at Rainawari and police had cooked up a story to conceal the facts.

TAKE STEPS TO END TORTURE: AI TELLS GOI
‘REPORTS OF TORTURE CONTINUE TO POUR IN FROM J&K’
June 27: Global human rights watchdog Amnesty International (AI) has said the Government of India must “take immediate steps to end all kinds of torture and other ill-treatment,” in accordance with the AI charter. In his June 26 letter to the home minister P Chidambaram, AI’s program director for Asia Pacific Sam Zarifi has said the human rights watchdog continues to receive reports of torture and ill-treatment of individuals in custody from states like Jammu & Kashmir where stringent security legislations are in force. 

 “I am writing to express Amnesty International’s concern that torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment are still inflicted widely throughout India,” Zarifi said.

 Asking India to ratify the UN convention against torture and other cruel, inhuman and degrading treatment or punishment, the letter states that even after 12 years of its existence, India is yet to ratify the convention. “Also, despite repeated requests since 1992, India has not extended an invitation to the UN special rapporteur on torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment,” the letter adds.

 The letter, copies of which have also been delivered to the union law minister Veerappa Moily and the chairman National Human Rights Commission (NHRC), Justice Rajendra Babu, states that India currently has no legislation in force to criminalize torture specifically. 

 The AI letter has also called upon the government of India initiate wide-ranging consultations with human rights and civil society organizations within the country, as well as with international NGOs and experts, in order to bring the draft legislation into line with the UN convention against torture. It is pertinent to mention that June 26 is being observed as the International Day in Support of Victims of Torture.

'JK GOVT NEVER SOUGHT PROSECUTION SANCTION IN JAVAID KILLING'
DEFENCE MINISTRY REFUTES CLAIM
June 29: The Ministry of Defense through joint secretary has refuted J&K government’s version made before the High Court of J&K related to seeking sanction to prosecute the army personnel allegedly involved in the killing of Javaid Ahmad Magray of Lasjan on May 30, 2003. 

 “The defense ministry has not received any request from the state government for sanction of prosecution in this particular case,” joint secretary, Defence Ministry stated in his affidavit before Jammu and Kashmir High Court on June 29 referring to the killing of Magray. 

In February 2009, the state government had stated that it had sent the case to the Union Defense Ministry for sanction to prosecute the army personnel involved in Magray’s killing. 
According to the joint secretary Ministry of Defence out of 458 cases which state has claimed has been sent to the federal govt. for grating sanction under AFSPA, only 46 cases are related to armed forces. Out of these 46 cases only 19 cases have been formally received by the Defence Ministry and hitherto 27 cases are yet to be received. In 19 cases sanction is yet to be finalized. Technically in none of the cases sanction has been grated. The contradiction made by the state and the Defence Ministry is very disturbing. 

It is pertinent to mention here that Javiad Ahmad Magray’s case, a student of 12th class who was dragged out of his house by the army personnel on May 30, 2003, and then shot dead has put the impunity into judicial scrutiny. 
SYED MANSOOR-CHOTA BAZAAR MASSACRE THAT SHOOK VALLEY 18 YEARS AGO
June 10: The memories of "Syed Mansoor-Chota Bazaar mayhem" perpetrated by the Central Reserve Police Force (CRPF) personnel 18 years ago still causes a deep stir inside the hearts of the scores of bereaved families whose kiths and kins were killed in the "blood-curdling" incident. 

It was Tuesday evening of June 11, 1991-when a nine-member CRPF posse came charging from their camp at Syed Mansoor Bridge towards the Government Medical College (GMC) Srinagar around 6:15 pm and opened indiscriminate firing with their automatic weapons all the way upto the densely populated downtown area of Srinagar, Chota Bazaar.

The indiscriminate firing by the security personnel took a massive toll of 32 lives of innocent civilians. Around 22 persons were also critically injured in the incident. The bullets hit shopkeepers, passerby, a 75-year old woman and a child. However, the official reports confirmed killings of 18 civilians and six injured persons. 

It is believed that the reprehensible act was a catharsis to "avenge" the killing of a CRPF jawan namely Abdul Majid of Azamgarh by some unidentified militants on the same fateful day at Zainakadal Srinagar at about 3 PM. However, there was no confirmation of the killing of the CRPF jawan by the officials. (The Kashmir Times, dated June 12, 1991) 

This was perhaps the most tragic incident of its kind since May 21, 1990 when mourners carrying the body of the assassinated Mirwaiz Farooq, Awami Action Committee founder-leader and father of Hurriyat Conference (M), Mirwaiz Umar Farooq, were fired upon near Islamia College Srinagar, allegedly on a fire provocation by the militants, leaving 70 unarmed civilians dead. 
Eyewitnesses of the horrendous incident said that while forcing their way into the provision store in front of the hospital, the CRPF jawans dragged people out and opened fire on them. One of the victims included a doctor of the opthomology department of SMHS hospital Srinagar who was shot in his throat despite pleading for his life while showing his identity card to the CRPF troops. 

An employee of the medical college and an eyewitness to the incident had this to say: "Our store keeper Ghulam Mohammad was dragged out and shot on the road. I locked myself in the bathroom and saved my life. Besides three shots, I heard Ghulam Mohammad's cry." (The Kashmir Times, June 13, 1991)

The security forces, according to the eye witnesses, stopped four auto-rickshaws near National School, Karan Nagar Srinagar and killed their drivers as well as passengers who included 75-year old wife of one Ghulam Hussan Khan of Chota Bazaar and brothers, Mohammed Syed Baihaqi and Meerak Baihaqi. 

This was unfortunately the second bereavement in seven months for the Baihaqi family of Zaldagar Srinagar as Sayeed Ahmad Baihaqi, the grand son of Mohammad Syed Baihaqi, 80, was killed outside his house by security forces on November 1, 1990 following an attack on the latter by unidentified militants. 

The security personnel then entered a mechanical workshop opposite National School, Karan Nagar and killed the workshop owner, Abdul Rashid. Three employees of the workshop also fell to the bullets. 

While recollecting the 18-year old tragic incident, a junior mechanic at the workshop who shares a deep anguish of the terrible mayhem, said, "Three CRPF men entered our shop and shouted 'Bhoon Daalo Sab Ko' (Kill them all!). Ignoring my master's pleas, they started firing. I saw my master dying in a pool of blood in front of me". The CRPF men went out of the shop but returned a few moments later, shouting 'Koi Bacha to Nahien Hai?' (If anybody is alive?)," adding that more than 10 dead bodies were lying in pool of blood outside the shop.

According to the reports published in The Kashmir Times next day, the entire area from where 17 bodies were picked and brought to the police control room by 8 pm bore blood stains. At the police control room where the dead bodies were brought, over 1000 grieving persons gathered to ascertain the identity of the deceased. Slogans were raised against the authorities of the control room who had mounted guard against the bereaved people looking for their deceased relatives. 

Whereas the then intelligence chief, Amar Kapoor and other senior officials who visited the spot were unable to explain the sequence of events, the then Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Srinagar, A L Khan, while admitting that all those killed were civilians told the Kashmir Times on the fateful day that a criminal case had been registered against the CRPF under Section 302 with the Karan Nagar police. 

However, according to the then divisional commissioner, C Phounsong, security forces retaliated when they came under severe fire from the militants. A day after the incident, the state government claimed to have ordered Central Bureau of Investigation (CBI) to probe into the Chota Bazaar firing and registered criminal cases in this connection to ensure a "fair and just inquiry." The official spokesman had further claimed that the security forces involved in the uncontrolled firing had been taken off from the duty. A separate commission headed by ex-chief justice, Mufti Jallal-ud-din was also appointed to inquire into the causes and circumstances leading to the Syed Mansoor-Chota Bazaar incident.

As a routine, the state government announced an ex-gratia relief of Rs one lakh each to the next of the kin of those killed at Syed Mansoor-Chota Bazaar. As a mark of protest against the tragic incident, shops, banks, government and semi-government establishments remained closed in the areas not coming under the purview of curfew. Transport services also remained off the roads in the entire Kashmir valley in view of the strike called by a militant outfit group, Al-Umar Mujahideen.

To pay obeisance to the deceased, hundreds of people visited the "massacre site" during the curfew relaxation period next day to the incident and placed flowers at spots from where the dead bodies of innocent persons were picked up. People from the nearby localities served food and water to the grieving visitors.

While talking to media, Shakeel Bakshi, a separatist leader opined that unless the perpetrators of the incidents like Syed-Mansoor-Chota Bazaar are not dealt with on the "war criminal" procedure, such incidents would continue to occur time and again.

SHRC SEEKS GOVT RESPONSE ON NAMELESS GRAVES
June 11: The State Human Rights Commission has issued notice to the Jammu and Kashmir Government seeking information on the initiatives taken on the Commission’s direction to investigate into the nameless graves found in Baramulla district last year.

“Having regard to the totality of the facts and sensitivity of the matter and the implication it has on public at large, the Commission deems it necessary to issue notice to the government,” chairperson SHRC, Justice Syed Bashir-ud-din said in his order. The Commission has sought details about the registration of the FIRs and other records maintained by the police station concerned in respect of ‘202 graves in Uri sub-division, 97 graves in Bijhama, 75 in Boniyar and 30 in Uri.’

The Commission has directed the senior superintendent of police of its investigative staff to start an independent inquiry into the matter. “He shall be extended all cooperation and facilities by the police stations concerned and other authorities,” the order said.

The latest notice to the Government follows suo moto cognizance of an Amnesty International report by the Commission in which the AI had urged the Government of India to launch an urgent investigation into the nameless graves found in Kashmir.

Quoting a report “Facts Under Ground” by Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons revealing that it had found the graves in Uri in a 14-months’ survey, the Amnesty had said, “These may be victims of unlawful killings and disappearances.”

The SHRC had recommended to the Government to develop a mechanism for redressing the grievances of APDP.

According to APDP, the survey was completed in four phases in different villages including Zandfaran, Kichama, Budmulla Fatehgarh, Chehal, Bimyar Peerniyan, Boniyar, Trikanjan, Parro Rampore, Chottali Gingal, Bijhama, Lachipora and Mayan.

“We have been able to find 940 to 1000 graves in many villages of Uri during the survey. And according to the locals most of the buried persons labelled as foreign militants by troops and policemen were later found to be the Kashmiris,” the APDP report had said. The Association had decided to highlight the issue in international fora.

“It is a long struggle, a tough fight, but the APDP wouldn’t give up till state government comes up with the details: who were they, why were they killed and buried unknown in deserted places. And where have thousands of the disappeared persons gone?” the APDP had said.

On June 25, a division bench comprising chairperson SHRC, Justice Syed Bashir-ud-Din and B N Tingloo, on June 19,has sent notices to the government through secretary home department, deputy commissioner Baramulla and police station in Uri,Bijhama and Boniyar through Director General of police to file the report in the case.
“Having regards to the totality of the facts the commission deems it necessary and proper to issue notices to Jammu and Kashmir government to file reply with record in this case,” the order from SHRC reads.
The SHRC has also asked the government to produce FIRs and other records maintained by the concerned police stations in the case.” Sent for FIRs and records in respect of 202 graves in Uri Sub division, 97 graves in Bijhama, 75 graves in Boniyar and 30 in Uri which the DGP had referred to in his preliminary report,” the order reads.
The commission has asked its Senior Superintendent of police (investigation) to enquire into the case and extend cooperation to the concerned police stations and other investigating authorities. The SHRC in its notification has requested all NGOs, public bodies, human rights activists, dignified social personalities and legal professionals to furnish any information they might have about the nameless graves.
The SHRC has recommended the state government to create a mechanism for redressing the complaints of Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons, Non Government Organizations and Public Bodies. The SHRC had also recommended that the government, through the evolved mechanism, should redress the complaints and grievances made by any Non-Governmental Organization of public body.
FATHER APPROACHES COURT TO GET FIR COPY ABOUT SON’S KILLING
June 25: Apprehending that the police might not have registered First Information Report about his son’s killing, a father has approached the Chief Judicial Magistrate Srinagar seeking direction to police to present copy of the FIR, if at all it has registered. Muhammad Ayoub Bhat has filed an application before the Chief Judicial Magistrate Srinagar saying his son Arif Ayoub Bhat was on his way to his home Razey Kadal on May 22, 2009.
He said the police party which was chasing stone-pelters found Arif walking lonely fired tear smoke shell at his head directly injuring him critically. He said his son later succumbed to injuries in the Sher-i-Kashmir Institute of Medical Science. He said the concerned police station was not handing him over the FIR copy. Lawyer say under rules copy of FIR as recorded be given free of cost to the concerned parties.
In his application, the father said his son was student of 10th class and had no adverse entry in police records. In his application father said he was intending to file a writ petition before the High Court against the State and requires the status quo of the case. The father said number of times, he visited concerned police station and requested for an FIR but they refused to furnish the copy.
He says he had apprehension that police might not have registered the FIR and it might be the reason for not handing over FIR copy. The CJM has directed the Nowhatta police station to present report about the case to the court. Lawyers said that there were clear guidelines about registering a First Information Report laid down by the Supreme Court of India. They said police cannot refuse to register an FIR, doubting the credibility or genuineness of a complaint.
Justice H.K.Sema and A.R. Lakshmanan have made it clear that the “genuineness or otherwise of the information can only be considered after the registration of a case. “The Bench has said: “At the stage of registration of a crime or a case on the basis of information disclosing an offence, a police officer cannot embark upon an enquiry whether the information is reliable or not,” the Bench said. The police would have no other option than registering a complaint.
PAYING FOR CRICKET PASSION WITH DEATH
June 23: The celebrations after Pakistan’s win in the T-20 Cricket World Cup final on June 21 were visible in the city, but fifteen years back on April 22 1994, the residents of Fateh Kadal could not rejoice the team’s win over arch rivals India in the final of Australia –Asia Cup played at Sharjah.The joy was drenched in blood when Sheikh Imtiyaz Ahmad, a 32-year-old passionate cricket fan, fell to bullets of troopers near his home.
Imtiyaz was also the caretaker of the local Cricket Club.Fayaz Ahmad; a local resident recalls that they had assembled in one of the neighbour’s house, who had installed a dish antenna, to watch the match Cable connection was yet to become a household possession in those days.

“All those associated with the cricket club, which was named as Rising Cricket Club by Imtiyaz were watching this final match with keen interest,”Fayaz recalls.
With India needing 250 to chase, it received an early setback with its opener batsman getting out. With passions running high, no one could resist clapping which caught the attention of troopers who were passing by. The troopers were infuriated with the locals applauding Pakistan’s performance.
Fayaz says that just as Sachin Tendulkar’s wicket fell, the troopers converged at the house where the locals were watching the match forcing them to turn the television off and disperse to their respective homes. Muhammad Shafi, who learned cricket from Imtiyaz, said that once they were out in the lane, the troopers started firing.
“There was chaos and everyone ran helter-skelter for safety.Imtiyaz had just reached near his home when a bullet hit him in the chest bringing him down instantly,”Shafi said.

Imtiyaz’s mother Aishia, who has been ailing since Imtiyaz’s death, said that it was Friday and she had just finished her prayers an hour before when she came to know about the incident. “I don’t know why he was so passionate about cricket,” she said. “Apart from building a strong local team, he used to enjoy every match and it was this passion that cost him his life,” she said recalling an incident when he purchased an expensive cricket bat and revealed this prized possession of his only to her. “He showed me a nice looking bat and I told him the price of the bat was equivalent to what was spent on my marriage,”Aishia said.
Overcome by grief of Imtiyaz’s killing, his friends had no idea which team had won the match for many days after the fateful day-the match which changed their lives forever as they were deprived of a good friend. Pakistan had won the match beating India by 39 runs, but Imtiyaz’s family lost everything.
“No one talked of the match. The cricket club associates just could not recover from the shock of losing their driving figure,” said Mehrajuddin,another local. Recalling the fond memories of her son, Aishia wonders if the winning by Pakistan team brings him any joy in the heavens.
LAND OCCUPATION
KASHMIR FARMERS LOST RS 1200 CR IN 20 YRS
June 14: Kashmiri farmers have lost over Rs 1200 crore due to forcible occupation of their cultivable land and orchards by troops during the past 20 years. According to official figures, 1, 28,331 kanal of cultivable land is under the forced occupation of troops and paramilitary troopers. The forced occupation of 94,435 kanal of the fertile cultivable land is classified as authorized in the official records as undersized rent ranging from Rs 500 to Rs 1390 per kanal by troops and paramilitary troopers every year. The remaining 33,896 kanal are occupied even without providing nominal compensation to the farming community.

The occupation of land led to the loss of Rs 1,000 crore over the two decades as paddy, oilseeds, pulses and other crops could not be grown on this land. The fruit growers also lost Rs 200 crore during this period due to occupation of their orchards. Director Research at SK University of Agricultural Sciences and Technology, Kashmir, Dr A R Trag said the occupation has given a serious blow to the agricultural sector of Kashmir, which is already short of cultivable land area because of its geographical terrain. 

“The sector suffered major losses owing to the occupation,” he said. “Hundreds of acres of the University’s research land is also occupied.” Each hectare of the occupied cultivable land used to produce six tones of paddy every Kharif season.Kashmiris are deprived of 3,84,660 quintal of paddy every year by the forced seizure of their land totalling an annual loss of Rs 38,47 crore.Kashmiri farmers utilize the same land for cultivation of mustard oil seed during winters. Each hectare produces one metric tone of the mustard oilseed during Rabi season. The land capture by troops divests the region of approximately 6411 tones of oilseed every year amounting to Rs 9.62 crore.
The continued occupation for the past 20 years has stripped Kashmir of more than Rs 1000 crore in paddy, oilseeds, pulses and other crops. Official figures say that the troopers have also forcibly occupied an orchard land of 5744 kanal from orchidists.This land has been converted into military barracks and no compensation has been provided to the farmers.

A nominal rent of Rs 500 per kanal was paid until last year for another 2,816 kanal documented as authorized occupation in official records. The rent has been revised up to Rs 10000 but farmers want eviction of troopers from their orchards. 

“Since generations, my orchard and my land have been a means of sustenance for my family. The army has deprived us of our morsel,” said Abdul Ahad of Pattan, Baramulla.Most of the orchard land gives us a harvest of 10 metric tones per hectare. Had the orchards not been occupied Kashmir would have earned at least more than Rs 226 crore over the past two decades. President of Kashmir Fruit Growers and Dealers Association, G R Bhat said the land and orchards under the occupations of troopers is devastated.

“The adjacent land has also been damaged as they could not be attended to owing to fear of the troops. They are a persistent danger not only to our sustenance but also to our lives and honour,” he said. Industrial units occupation costs Kashmir inc Rs 1000 Cr, 2000 jobs

TEENAGER DISAPPEARS IN CUSTODY
June 29: The disappearance of a teenager allegedly from the custody of army triggered massive protests in Dooru. Police has registered a case and started investigation. ”Basharat Ahmad,16,son of Muhammad Maqbool Bhat of Chakpath Laripora was called by the troopers of 36 Rashtriya Rifles to their camp on June 29 and since then his whereabouts are not known,” family told media.

“On Thursday evening (June 25), the troopers called the numberdar of our village asking him to tell my son, Basharat to report to the camp on Friday (June 26).Next morning, I and my nephew Abid accompanied him upto the camp. But we were asked by the troopers to wait outside as my son went inside. He was left after some time,” said Maqbool Bhat, father of Basharat.

Quoting Basharat, father alleged that the major and captain of the camp had warned him not to disclose their conversation to anybody. “He left for Srinagar on the same day but he was again asked by the troopers to report in the camp on June 27.They had also told him to give them a call as soon as he reached Islamabad. They had also told him not to go home and instead directly report to the camp. But then when he called them, they told him to come on Sunday (June 28) now,” said Bhat.

He said that on June 28 at around 9:30 am he accompanied Basharat upto the main gate of the army camp from where he went inside.” When he didn’t return till 2:00 pm, we went to see him in the camp, where we were informed that he had left an hour before,” he added.



The Commanding officer of 36 RR, Colonel Sundaram confirmed that the youth had been summoned by the army. “He reported to the camp at 9:30 am on June 28 after being called by us but it was just a routine visit and nothing else. Thereafter he left from here at around 1:00 PM,” he said. Sundaram said that they too were “equally concerned” about the disappearance of the boy and were fully cooperating with his family.



Police officials said that they had registered a case under FIR No.53/Sec 364 RPC and investigations were on. As the word about Basharat’s disappearance spread in the area, residents of Larkipora and adjoining areas took to the streets demanding his whereabouts. 

 “The government has passed instructions that army should inform local police before summoning or releasing a person. In this case, the boy was called to the camp and then released without informing us,” said a top police official.

TROOPER COMMITS SUICIDE

June 21: An army trooper allegedly committed suicide by shooting himself to death from his own service rifle at Udhampur. Police sources said that Lance Naik Mohammad Rafeeq fired towards himself from his own service rifle inside an army camp at Dhar road in Udhampur district. “He died on the spot,” they said.

Army has ordered a court of inquiry to investigate into the incident. Police too have registered a case in this regard.
OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
· ‘WILL EXAMINE AFSPA, RATIONALIZE TROOPS’

KASHMIR FACING PECULIAR POLITICAL ISSUES, NEEDS SOLUTION

June 12: Signalling the Government of India’s long-awaited intent of taking substantial reconciliatory measures in Jammu & Kashmir, the union home minister P Chidambaram said while the issue of revocation of the Armed Forces (Special Powers) Act (AFSPA) would be examined in the right earnest, steps would be taken at the same time to rationalize the troops deployment for internal security.

Addressing a press conference at the conclusion of his 2-day visit to the Valley, Chidambaram declared that the Army and the paramilitary forces would now have clearly demarcated roles - while the Centre will look into the Armed Forces Special Powers Act and consider “every essential aspect” of it.

“I now have a better idea of both the security situation as well as the issues which need to be addressed after my exhaustive meetings with the Unified Command, local politicians and the Government functionaries,” he said.

Making it clear that maintenance of law and order will be the primary responsibility of the Jammu and Kashmir government, Chidambaram said in urban areas, state police will be in charge of law and order, while in border regions and far-flung areas, the Army will continue their defence responsibilities.

Regarding AFSPA, Chidambaram said the issue of AFSPA was flagged two months back during his meeting with the State chief minister Omar Abdullah and they had agreed to look at the matter after the elections. “I promise to look at the matter. I have to discuss it with the Defence Minister and the Prime Minister. It will be looked into in all earnestness,” he said adding, “A statement would be issued on the issue after his discussion with the prime minister and the defence minister.”

As reported by media, to begin with, the Government has decided to revoke AFSPA from Srinagar and Budgam districts of the Valley alongside the process of phased withdrawal of CRPF from the city. Asked about the Chief Minister Omer Abdullah’s demand that the troop deployment in the State be brought to 1989 level, Chidambaram said the Central Government is in agreement with the State Government on the issue. “I am aware of this request,” he said.

Chidambaram said the government has decided to redraw the lines of responsibility for security forces operating in Jammu and Kashmir and the State police would be given primary responsibility in dealing with the law and order situation.

“It is our intention to redraw the lines of responsibilities,” he said. Elaborating, he said Army has the responsibility of conventional defence on the borders, and to “counter terrorism” within the State. “The paramilitary forces are deployed aide the State police in maintaining the law and public order and countering terrorism. The State police is principal instrument for maintaining the law and order, public order and fighting militancy,” he said. He said it would take some time to draw the lines of responsibilities.

Asked whether the State police would substitute the Army, he said the Government would like the Army to operate in areas far away from towns and cities. “If the state police calls the paramilitary forces for assistance then the paramilitary forces would step in. But the primary responsibility of maintaining law and order in towns and cities must lie with the State police,” he said.
·  NO TROOP-CUT TILL SUMMER END: GEN KAPOOR  

June 12: Reducing troops in Jammu and Kashmir could be considered only after assessing "infiltration trends" in summer and after the pilgrimage to Amarnath in the Valley ends, Army chief Deepak Kapoor said, while maintaining that infiltration from across the border was likely to increase.

“The chances of infiltration going up is very much there because a number of (terrorist) camps are there on the other side of the border,” Kapoor told reporters in New Delhi.

Discussing the issue of troops reduction, he said, “We have to see the infiltration trends during this summer and only after the Amarnath Yatra would this question (of troops reduction) be addressed. “The Army, he said, had been called into Jammu and Kashmir "because things were bad". "As the situation improves gradually and when the political authority feels that the Army should be called back we would (withdraw)."Kapoor said the decision to withdraw the Army from the state would be taken by the political leadership of the country after assessing the situation there.

“As the situation improves gradually, as and when the political authority feels that the Army should be withdrawn, it may be withdrawn and it depends on the assessment by the political authority of situation,” he said.

"We recognize that there are unwanted elements behind terrorism. They are trying to take advantage of the situation. Whenever there are allegations on the security forces we investigate and according to the dos and don'ts we take action," Kapoor said in a reference to the volatile situation in the state following the rape and murder of two women in the valley's Shopian town allegedly by paramilitary troopers.

· MANMOHAN PROMISES ACTION AGAINST SHOPIAN CULPRITS

June 17: Days after the alleged rape and murder of two women in Shopian, Prime Minister Manmohan Singh Wednesday said the government will take effective action against the perpetrators and offered to hold talks with all groups, including those outside the political mainstream, to bring peace and stability to Jammu and Kashmir.

"It's a very unfortunate development. If there were human rights violations, then we will take effective action," Manmohan Singh said in a mid-air press conference while returning from Russia. "We will be happy to engage in dialogue with any group, even those outside the political mainstream. We are ready to talk with whosoever is willing to shun the gun culture and violence," he said.
· INFILTRATION HAS DECLINED: ANTONY
June 25: Admitting that infiltration of militants into Jammu and Kashmir has declined, the defence minister AK Antony ruled out lowering of guard in the strife torn State. Addressing media persons after addressing the Unified Commanders’Conference, Antony said, “Infiltration from Pakistan has declined in the recent past, but the threat from militants in Jammu and Kashmir is “real” and there is no question of lowering the guard. Of late, there has been a decline in infiltration in the borders but we cannot say it is an improvement.”
Antony made it clear that there is no question of lowering the guard especially in Jammu and Kashmir. “The militant outfits are still working and the threat is ‘real’, “he said.
· GOI MULLS PHASED AFSPA REVOCATION IN JK

STARTING WITH SRINAGAR-BUDGAM

June 29: The centre is seriously considering a proposal for phased withdrawal of Armed Forces (Special Powers) Act in Jammu and Kashmir following a strong case made out by chief minister Omar Abdullah for scrapping it. To begin with, the centre is likely to explore the possibility of withdrawal of AFSPA from two districts of Kashmir valley - Srinagar and Budgam - and two in Jammu region – Jammu and Kathua - where incidents of violence have shown a marked decline, official sources said. 

 The chief minister has held a series of meetings with Union Home Minister P Chidambaram and Defence Minister A K Antony recently where he raised the issue of either amending the AFSPA, repealing it or taking it out of the state in a phased manner. 

 Omar gave a roadmap for its phased withdrawal beginning with the districts that have registered no or bare minimum violence during the past one year and in this context he gave examples of the four districts. 

 Sources in the government here said that as the situation in militancy-hit state had improved to a large extent, a serious thought could be given to the state’s demand. A meeting between Home and Defense ministry officials may be held soon to elicit the views of the army and central paramilitary forces, the sources said.

EXPLOSIONS
· 2 KILLED IN BLAST

June 3: Two scrap dealers were killed when an explosive device went off in central Kashmir’s Budgam district, police said. Abdul Salam Tantray and Muhammad Yousuf Malik were killed on the spot when they touched the explosive substance at village Shinglipora, a police official said. He said the duo had picked up the explosive substance while collecting scrap near a firing range.

· 2 SHEPHERDS KILLED IN MINE BLAST NEAR LoC
June 13: Two shepherds were killed and two others injured in a land mine explosion near the Line of Control (LoC) in Mendhar tehsil of Poonch district.
Police said, “Two shepherds died on the spot while two were critically inadvertently stepped over a land mine while grazing their cattle 500 meters short of the LoC at Kanga nallah in Balakot sector of tehsil Mendhar at around 1.10 PM.”
The deceased have been identified as Mohammad Riyasat,22,son of Mohammad Rashid of Kanga Galli and Mohammad Asif Khan,18,son of Vilayat Khan of Chappar Gharuti in Mendhar.The injured were identified as Mohammad Khalif and Mohammad Kafil both residents of Kanga.
However, police party led by Station House Officer (SHO) Police Station Mendhar Inspector Farooq Hussain Shah under the supervision of SDPO Mendhar Rajinder Katoch and army rushed to the spot.

· MAN SUCCUMBED 

On June 21, Ghulam Muhammad Ganai who had sustained injuries in the IED explosion succumbed to his injuries in the Sher-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences.
· ONE INJURED IN EXPLOSION
June 25: One person Firdous Ahmad Sheikh, 22, years of Sheikh Mohalla Khundroo while working in his farm at Khundroo got injured when a fuse lying in the field exploded. He has been shifted to hospital.
KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF JUNE -2009

	DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	June 01
	1
	-
	-
	-

	June 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 03
	-
	-
	2
	-

	June 04
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 05
	-
	3
	-
	1(National Conference activist)

	June 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 07
	-
	1
	-
	-

	June 08
	2
	3
	-
	-

	June 09
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 10
	-
	2
	-
	-

	June 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 13
	1
	-
	3
	-

	June 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 15
	1
	3
	-
	-

	June 16
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 19
	-
	-
	1
	1(Released militant)

	June 20
	-
	-
	-
	3(1 VDC member & 2 dead bodies)

	June 21
	1
	1
	1
	-

	June 22
	-
	3
	-
	-

	June 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 26
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 27
	-
	-
	2
	-

	June 28
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 29
	-
	-
	2
	-

	June 30
	-
	-
	1
	-

	TOTAL
	6
	16
	15
	5

	                                                    IN TOTAL
	42 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	16 June 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	20 June 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	27 June 2009
	-
	1
	-
	-

	28 June 2009
	-
	-
	-
	1

	Total
	0
	3
	0
	1



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS

June 1: A trooper was killed and three injured in an ambush at Handwara in frontier district of Kupwara distrct.The deceased has been identified as Lance Naik Dil Kumar Roy of 1st Para (No.9423819L) .Meanwhile, atleast three policemen were injured when unidentified gunmen lobbed a grenade on police station Sopore.The injured policemen were identified as SPO Tariq Ahmad, Constable Imtiyaz Ahmad (driver) and Muhammad Ashraf.

June 2: At least 105 persons were injured, some of them critically in clashes between protestors and cops across valley. The people were protesting against the rape and killing of two women in Shopian.
June 3: Two scrap dealers were killed when an explosive device went off in central Kashmir’s Budgam district. Abdul Salam Tantray and Mohammad Yousuf Malik were killed on the spot when they touched the explosive substance at village Shinglipora.The duo had picked up the explosive substance while collecting scrap near a firing range.
June 4: The 22 year old youth of uptown Old Barzulla, Nisar Ahmad Mir, who had been critically injured after being hit on his head by a tear gas smoke shell by the police on June 1, succumbed to his injuries.Meanwhile, atleast 65 persons including 10 CRPF personnel were injured in clashes in the city.
June 5: Three militants including Operations Chief of Lashkar-e-Toiba were killed in an encounter with troopers in Doda.One of the slain militant has been identified as Chief Operations Commander of Lashkar,Akram,a Pakistani national. The identity of two other militants, belonging to Hizbul Mujahideen was being ascertained.Meanwhile,a National Conference activist identified as Mohammad Abdullah Geela,56,son of Ghulam Qadir was shot dead by unidentified gunmen in Pulwama.The deceased was a shopkeeper by profession. Police have registered a case and launched investigations. 

June 6: A youth identified as Naveed Rasheed Siroo son of Abdul Rasheed Siroo of Arampora, Sopore was injured after being hit on his head by a tear gas shell fired by police during protests against the rape and murder of two women in Shopian.

June 7: Army claimed to have killed a Divisional Commander of Hizbul-Mujahideen in a gun battle in north Kashmir’s Bandipora distrct.The slain militant has been identified as Hizb Commander Abu Zar.Meanwhile, frustrated by fruitless search fro militants for several hours, a Rashtriya Rifles soldier shot at and injured a farmer in Mendhar area of Poonch distrct.The victim has been identified as Mukhtiar Ahmad, 28, son of Fateh Mohammad. 

June 8: Three unidentified militants, an army Major and a trooper were killed in a 2-day encounter near the line of control in Hyhama, Kupwara.The Army Major has been identified as Ramani Bai and the Sepoy as Jagdav Singh. At least 15 persons were injured, five of them seriously, in firing and tear smoke shelling by the police and paramilitary troopers in the south Kashmir district of Shopian.

June 9: At least 40 school and college students, many of them girls, were wounded in Pulwama town when police fired dozens of teargas shells and resorted to lathicharge to quell their demonstration. Nineteen students admitted to hospital are Tanveera daughter of Ghulam Muhammad Rather, Tahir Ahmad Shah son of Nazir Ahmad Shah of Poochal, Rafia Akhter daughter of Abdul Razaq Ahangar of Pathan, Muzamil Jan daughter of Farooq Ahmad of Gabarpora, Jawaid Ahmad, Adil Ahraf, and Muhammad Shafi Malla of Hall, Bilqees Jan daughter of Bashir Ahmad, Daisy daughter of Abdul Ahad Dar of Nikas, Roohi Jan daughter of Abdul Hamid of Dalipora, Saira daughter of Syed Bashir Ahmad of Ratnipora, Yasmeen daughter of Ghulam Muhammad of Babahar, Sami Jan daughter of Muhammad Ashraf of Drussu,  Firdous Ahmad of Parigam, Manzoor Ahmad of Poochal, Javaid Ahmad of Wagam and Amir Ahmad of Trenj.

June 10: Police claimed to have killed two militants, including a commander of Harkat-ul-Mujahideen in Sopore.The slain militants have been identified as Mumtaz Ahmad Parray son of Ali Mohammad Parray of Pethseer and Kalimulla alias Sher.Meanwhile, atleast 15 girl students were injured when the Special Operation Group (SOG) lobbed teargas shells and used force on the peaceful protesters inside the Degree College Anantnag. They were protesting against Shopian incident. Police also used force to disperse the protesters in Kulgam and near secretariat in which seven girls were injured.
June 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
June 12: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

June 13: Unidentified gunmen shot dead two persons including a policeman in Sopore.The deceased cop has been identified as Ghulam Nabi (PID No.ARP992624) son of Ghulam Mohammad Bhat of Batapora,Sopore presently posted at Humhama Budgam while the dead civilian has been identified as Asif Ahmad Dar,22,son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din of Sangrampora,Sopore.Meanwhile,two shepherds were killed and two others injured in a landmine explosion near the Line of Control (LoC) in Mendhar tehsil of Poonch distrct.The deceased have been identified as Mohammad Riyasat,22,son of Mohammad Rashid of Kanga Galli and Mohammad Asif Khan,18,son of Vilayat Khan of Chappar Gharuti in Mendhar.The injured were identified as Mohammad Khalif and Mohammad Kafil both residents of Kanga.

June 14: At least 12 persons were injured in the clashes between protesters and policemen in old city. Scores of youth took to the streets near Rajouri Kadal to protest against the rape and murder of a teenager, Asiya Jan and her pregnant sister in law, Neelofar, in Shopian.

June 15: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a policeman and injured his colleague in Sopore.The gunmen opened fire on a vehicle in which the head constable Mushtaq Ahmad Fafoo son of Abdur Razaq of Khwaja Bagh Baramulla and his colleague Nazir Ahmad Dar of Lolab Kupwara were travelling. The injured were rushed to hospital where Fafoo succumbed while Dar was battling for his life. Meanwhile, three militants were killed in an ongoing encounter with army's 47 Rashtriya Rifles near line of control in frontier district of Kupwara.

June 16: Unidentified gunmen barged into the house of Reshma Jan, 45 and opened indiscriminate fire at her in Model Town B Sopore.She was working as a PR in UCO Bank, Sopore .Police has filed an FIR and launched investigations.

June 17: At least 32 persons were injured at Manzgam in South Kashmir’s Islamabad district when police and CRPF resorted to teargas shelling and fired several rounds in air to disperse a rally protesting against the Shopian incident.
June 18: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

June 19: Unknown persons lobbed a grenade near Dalgate killing a man Abdul Salam on the spot and injuring another Noor Mohammad Sofi critically. Meanwhile, police claimed that a released militant died and two persons wounded in an IED blast in a house at Alamdar Colony in Lal Bazar.Police statement said a released militant of Hizbul Mujahideen identified as Firdous Ali Dar of Owanta Bhawan died on the spot while as owner of the house, Riyaz Ahmad Bhat and another person, Ghulam Muhammad Ganai of Owanta Bhawan, were critically wounded. In another incident, at least 25 persons including some cops were injured in the clashes across the valley. The people were protesting against the rape and murder of two women in Shopian.
June 20: Police claimed to have recovered two bodies from South Kashmir, throat slit body of Khatija wife of Fayaz Ahmad was recovered from Batagund in Islamabad Police also recovered an unidentified male body from Batagund in Dooru.The face of the body was mutilated and the identity of the deceased could not be ascertained. Meanwhile, the VDC member Shyam Lal was killed when he accidentally shot himself in Rajouri.
June 21: A Hizb-ul-Mujahideen ultra was killed by security forces in Doda.The slain militant has been identified as Mohammad Aslam Bhat alias Hamad, 22, son of Ghulam Hassa Bhat, resident of Krotwan Doda.Meanwhile, Ghulam Muhammad Ganai who had sustained injuries in the IED explosion on June 9 at Lal Bazar, succumbed to his injuries in the Sher-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Sciences. In another incident, an army trooper allegedly committed suicide by shooting himself to death from his own service rifle at Udhampur.The deceased has been identified as Lance Naik Mohammad Rafeeq.
June 22: Police claimed that three Lashkar-e-Toiba militants were killed in an encounter in Reasi distrct.The slain militants have been identified as LeT commander Abu Hurara, Qasim and Abdul Majid.
June 23: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
June 24: Unidentified gunmen opened fire on escort vehicle of DIG South Kashmir Range Islamabad near Maminder Shopian resulting in injury to a constable.

June 25: One person Firdous Ahmad Sheikh, 22, years of Sheikh Mohalla Khundroo while working in his farm at Khundroo got injured when a fuse lying in the field exploded.
June 26: At least five persons were injured two of them critically when police and paramilitary CRPF troopers opened fire on peaceful protesters at Shirmal Shopian.The injured were identified as Muhammad Shafi of Shirmal.He was hit by a bullet in his abdomen while Syed Khalid of Nazimpora, Shopian and Manzoor Ahmad Sheikh of Paswal, Shopian received injuries in leg.Shafi was shifted to SMHS hospital while two others were taken to Bone and Joints hospital.
June 27: A couple was shot dead by unidentified gunmen in border district of Rajouri.Unknown gunmen barged into the house of Mohammad Latief Pathan, 37, son of Amanullah Khan at Danga and fired indiscriminately towards the inmates. In the shoot-out, the house owner and his 33 year old wife Kalsoom Begum were killed. Police has registered a case FIR No.50/09 U/S 302,120-B, 121,122 and 7/27 Arms Act stands registered at police station Khandi.

June 28: Unidentified man was shot dead by Border Security Force men near Phagwari Border post in Akhnoor in Jammu.BSF claimed to have shot dead an intruder who attempted to sneak into the Indian side of the border. Meanwhile, at least 30 persons were injured in clashes between protestors and security forces at Shopian and Baramulla.One of the injured identified as Bilal Ahmad Paul was hit deep by a tear smoke shell in his abdomen and suffered serious injuries.Ruqiya Jan and Umar Ishfaq were also injured due to teargas shelling at Shopian.

June 29: Two persons were killed and 30 others injured in Baramulla when police and paramilitary troopers opened fire to disperse demonstrators protesting against the alleged misbehaviour of a policeman with a woman. The deceased were identified as Muhammad Saleem Wani son of Abdur Rashid Wani of Syed Karim Sahib, Baramulla and Tariq Ahmad Malik son of Saifudin Malik of Drangbal. 
June 30: A youth was killed and a minor sustained critical injuries when paramilitary CRPF troopers opened fire to quell protestors at Baramulla.The deceased has been identified as Fayaz Ahmad Gojri 

GOVT RESTRICTS CABLE CHANNELS


June 6: The government directed all the private news channels to restrict their news bulletins to 15 minutes daily. The district administration convened a meeting of the editors, proprietors and correspondents of the Srinagar-based cable channels and urged them to adhere to the rules and regulations of the Cable Act. It asked the cable operators to broadcast the news from 8 pm to 8: 15 pm daily. “We only want to ensure that the rules governing the Cable Act is not violated by broadcast of objectionable programs,” the deputy commissioner, Me’raj Ahmad Kakroo, said.


Meanwhile, police has filed an FIR against local news gathering agency, CNS, for transmitting wrong information through its SMS service. The FIR has been registered against for transmitting a news ‘Shopian tense, more than 100 protesters injured.’


On the instruction of SSP, reports said, an FIR had been registered against the agency in Kothi Bagh Police Station.  





WOMAN /CHILDREN KILLED





June 16: A woman was shot dead in North Kashmir’s Sopore area. Police said the incident happened at around 9:30 pm at Model Town B Sopore.


“The unidentified gunmen barged into the house of one Reshma Jan and opened indiscriminate fire at them,” official said.


Police said Reshma Jan was critically injured and subsequently shifted to Sub District Hospital Sopore. “She succumbed at the hospital,” official said.Resham Jan, 45, was working as PR in UCO Bank, Sopore. She is survived by three daughters. “One of her daughter is in police,” a family relative said. Police said they have filed an FIR and launched investigations.


June 20: Mystery shrouds death of a physically challenged woman mother of two children, whose throat slit body was recovered from her house at Kandipora Bijbehara in South Kashmir’s Islamabad district late last night, official sources told media. Sources said Khatija, 45 daughter of Ghulam Rasool Sheikh was found in pool of blood by one of the children who were asleep along with her. The boy, they said cried for help, which caught the attention of the locals who rushed to the spot. The locals called the police and team of officials including Superintendent of police, SDPO and Station House Officer reached the spot and took custody of the throat slit body.


June 27: Unknown gunmen barged into the house of Mohammad Latief Pathan, 37, son of Amanullah Khan at Danga and fired indiscriminately towards the inmates. In the shoot-out, the house owner and his 33 year old wife Kalsoom Begum were killed.
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On June 4,Nisar Ahmad Mir of Barzulla became the third boy who died after being hit by tear smoke shells fired by police and CRPF troopers during demonstrations since August last year. The death of these boys has raised question over the ruthless crowd control by police, as tear shells are supposed to disperse demonstrators, not kill them.


Before Nisar, Arif Ayoub Bhat of Ganderpora suffered brain trauma when a tear shell hit him in the forehead. Both Nisar and Arif went into coma and were kept on ventilator, according to the doctors. And both of them succumbed at SKIMS, Soura—Arif on May 26 and Nisar on June 4.


Last year (2008) on August 3, Asif Mehraj`, a 16-year old mechanic, died of cardiac arrest after being hit by a tear shell in his chest.


In April 2009, Omar Jalal Gojri of Baramulla town lost sight in his left eye and his right arm was paralyzed by a tear smoke shell. Several other boys have been wounded in tear shelling, and there seems to be a pattern in using tear shells as an alternative to bullets.


According to a senior police official, wishing anonymity, the rules for firing tear gas shells on crowds are very strict. “The police have a lot of regulations in place which strictly regulate the use of force and especially the use of tear gas shells. The problem is that the police have two types of tear gas shells, one that pierces walls and windows and is meant for counter-militancy operations. Than, there is a non piercing shell for mob control, which is to be fired into air from a distance of 50 yards so that the shell explodes in air before landing into crowd, and also to ensure no one can throw it back. A Public Address System is also mandatory for warning the crowd to disperse or face action. The presence of magistrate is also mandatory when demonstrations are expected.”


According to law expert, Prof. Sheikh Showkat, “In places where the Armed Forces Special Powers Act is not in force, a magistrate’s permission is required before even firing a shot. But due to AFSPA in J&K the forces here need no permission and the decision can be taken by a police officer of sub-inspector’s rank.”





IAPL TO PROBE SHOPIAN RAPE, MURDER


June 14: The Jammu and Kashmir Chapter of The Netherlands-based International Association of People’s Lawyers said that it had constituted a team to investigate the rape and murder of two young women in Shopian last month.


 A spokesman of the Association said that its team would investigate the case. “After thorough investigation, IAPL would submit the report to the United Nations and endeavor that the justice is done with victims and the culprits are brought to book,” he said in a statement. Condemning the incident at a meeting of its executive council, the IAPL members termed it as deplorable and a crime against humanity. 


“Despite the medical report and forensic science laboratory tests, the government is maintaining silence over the issue,” the meeting observed. The Association expressed concern over the growing human rights violations in Kashmir.
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